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I.  INTRODUCTION
1. In this Forfeiture Order (“Order”), we issue a monetary forfeiture in the amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000) to Advanced TelCom, Inc. (“Advanced TelCom”) for willful violation of Section 1.949 of the Commission’s Rules (“Rules”).
  The noted violation involves Advanced TelCom’s failure to file license renewal applications for the above-captioned stations prior to the expiration of the authorizations for the stations.

2. On November 5, 1999, the Chief of the former Enforcement and Consumer Information Division of the Wireless Telecommunications Bureau (“Wireless Bureau”) issued a Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture (“NAL”) in the amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000) to Advanced TelCom for the noted violation.
  Advanced TelCom filed a response to the NAL on January 10, 2000.


II.  BACKGROUND
3. Advanced TelCom’s authorizations for Stations KNKG512 and KWB377 expired on April 1, 1999.  Advanced TelCom did not file applications for renewal of the authorizations until June 11, 1999.  On October 1, 1999, the Wireless Bureau granted the late-filed renewal applications.

4. On November 5, 1999, the Wireless Bureau, pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and Section 1.80 of the Rules,
 issued an NAL in the amount of $3,000 to Advanced TelCom for the late filing of its license renewal applications.  

5. On January 10, 2000, the Commission received Advanced TelCom’s response to the NAL.  In the response, Advanced TelCom asserts that the proposed forfeiture should be cancelled because Advanced TelCom is a very small business whose revenues are insufficient to cover the forfeiture amount.  In support of this assertion, Advanced TelCom submits profit and loss statements for 1999 and for the first five months of 2000.
  Advanced TelCom also argues that the proposed forfeiture should be cancelled because this is the only occasion on which it failed to file a timely license renewal application or was found to be in violation of the Commission’s rules.  

III.  DISCUSSION

6. Section 1.949 of the Rules states, in pertinent part, that “[a]pplications for renewal of authorizations in the Wireless Radio Services must be filed no later than the expiration date of the authorization for which renewal is sought ….”
  We find that Advanced TelCom willfully violated Section 1.949 of the Rules by filing the renewal applications for Stations KNKG512 and KWB377 71 days after the expiration of its authorizations.

7. Advanced TelCom submits profit and loss statements in support of its assertion that its revenues are insufficient to cover the proposed forfeiture.  The Commission requires licensees claiming inability to pay a forfeiture to provide tax returns or financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for the most recent three years or other reliable and objective documentation that accurately reflects the licensee’s current financial status.  See Barry A. Stevenson, 12 FCC Rcd 1976, 1977 (Compl. & Inf. Bur. 1997).  Advanced TelCom’s financial statements do not include any certification as to their correctness, and we cannot determine from the information available that these financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  In any event, Advanced TelCom’s profit and loss statements indicate that it had gross revenues of $195,309.28 in 1999 and $79,475.41 in the first five months of 2000.
  The proposed forfeiture amount of $3,000 is not excessive in the context of these revenues. 

8. Advanced TelCom also argues that the proposed forfeiture should be cancelled because this is the only occasion on which it failed to file a timely license renewal application or was found to be in violation of the Commission’s rules.  However, as stated in the NAL, the factors set forth in Section 503(b)(2)(D) of the Act,
 including Advanced TelCom’s prior record of compliance, were taken into account in setting the proposed forfeiture at $3,000 for both stations.  Accordingly, we find that no further downward adjustment of the forfeiture amount is warranted.  

IV.  ORDERING CLAUSES

9. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that, pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Act, and Sections 0.111, 0.311 and 1.80(f)(4) of the Rules,
 Advanced TelCom, Inc. IS LIABLE FOR A MONETARY FORFEITURE in the amount of three thousand ($3,000) for willfully violating Section 1.949 of the Rules.

10. Payment of the forfeiture shall be made in the manner provided for in Section 1.80 of the  Rules
 within 30 days of the release of this Order.  If the forfeiture is not paid within the period specified, the case may be referred to the Department of Justice for collection pursuant to section 504(a) of the Act.
  Payment may be made by credit card through the Commission’s Credit and Debt Management Center at (202) 418-1995 or by mailing a check or similar instrument, payable to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, to the Federal Communications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicago, Illinois 60673-7482.  The payment should note the NAL/Acct. No. X20EF0016.  Requests for full payment under an installment plan should be sent to: Chief, Credit and Debt Management Center, 445 12th Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20554.

11. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order shall be sent by Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested to Advanced TelCom, Inc. 933 McArthur Boulevard, Warner Robins, Georgia 31093, Attn: Edward R. Panarese, and to its counsel, Lewis Goldman, 4141 North Henderson Road, Plaza Suite 9, Arlington, Virginia 22203.
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	� 47 C.F.R. § 1.949.  


	� Advanced Telecom, Inc., DA 99-2433 (Wireless Bur., Enf. and Cons. Inf. Div., released November 5, 1999).	


	� On December 6, 1999, and again on January 5, 2000, counsel for Advanced TelCom requested and was granted additional time to respond to the NAL.	


	� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.	


	� Advanced TelCom submitted the profit and loss statements as a supplement to its response to the NAL on June 22, 2000.	


	� 47 C.F.R. § 1.949.	


	� The Commission has held that a licensee’s gross revenues are generally the best indicator of its ability to pay a forfeiture.  See, e.g., PJB Communications of Virginia, Inc., 7 FCC Rcd 2088, 2089 (1992).	


	� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(2)(D).	


� 47 C.F.R. §§ 0.111, 0.311, 1.80(f)(4).


� 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.


� 47 U.S.C. § 504(a).


� See 47 C.F.R. § 1.1914.
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